Public Document Pack

Leighton-Linslade

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Partnership Committee
10 June 2022

To:
Members of the Partnership Committee (Councillors C Palmer, T Morris,
S Hemmings, S Owen, F Kharawala, A L Dodwell, V Harvey, E Wallace, K Ferguson
and D Bowater)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Partnership Committee to be held
on Thursday, 16 June 2022 commencing at 7.30 pm in the The Council Chamber, The
White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds
THIS MEETING MAY
LU7 1HD.
BE RECORDED *

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

AGENDA
1.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR 2022-2023

2.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2022-2023

3.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting.
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town
Clerk.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by

Leighton-Linslade Town Council and
Central Bedfordshire Council working in
partnership

Leighton-Linslade

Thursday, 16 June 2022

Partnership Committee

the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).
5.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15
MINUTES)
To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order
No.s 3(e) 1(f)and 1(g).

6.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)
(a)
To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the
Partnership Committee meeting held on 21 April 2022 (attached).
(b)

7.

To receive any updates arising from the minutes.

SECRETARIAT
To agree the committee secretariat for 2022-23 as per committee terms of
reference.

8.

PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT UPDATE
To receive a verbal update on the Central Bedfordshire funded public realm
improvement project.

9.

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE PLACE AND COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE
By invitation, Lorna Carver, Director of Place and Communities will attend the
meeting to provide an overview of the Directorate.

10.

TOWN COUNCIL UPDATE REPORT INCLUDING AREAS REQUESTED
FOR COLLABORATION WITH CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
(Pages 7 - 14)
To receive an overview of Leighton-Linslade Town Council activity including
areas in which greater collaboration with Central Bedfordshire Council is sought
(attached).

11.

COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN (Pages 15 - 18)
To consider items to be programmed into Committee’s work for 2022–2023
(attached).

Leighton-Linslade

Thursday, 16 June 2022

Partnership Committee

12.

STANDING ITEMS
To receive verbal/written updates as applicable:



13.

CBC Councillors updates.
LLTC Councillors updates

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE LEISURE CENTRE CONSULTATION (Pages 19
- 22)
In accordance with Town Council Standing Order 9, to consider the
following Motion submitted by Councillor C Palmer and seconded by
Councillor V Harvey:






14.

That serious consideration be given (in the light of the points made in the
attached document) following the consultation period, to the case for the
continuation of Tiddenfoot as a leisure facility with such management
and organisational changes as may be necessary for this to be feasible
That, in the event that such continuation does not prove practical,
serious consideration be given to the continuation (and improvement) of
such facilities which may be able to continue in use for the community
whether through transfer to third parties or agreement with Cedars
Upper School to minimise the disbenefits to the local and surrounding
community
That, in the event of a more general closure of Tiddenfoot as a Leisure
Centre, a firm commitment be given to its continuation as a community
hub with serious and urgent consideration being given to the functions it
might perform under this heading, in consultation with the community.

ITEMS FOR REQUESTING ATTENTION BY CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE
COUNCIL
To identify and confirm if any requested items for CBC’s attention in
accordance with the defined procedure.

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member,
officer or member of the public. No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into
exempt session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Leighton-Linslade

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Partnership Committee

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
MINUTES OF PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 21 APRIL 2022 AT 7.30 PM
Present: Councillors

C Palmer
T Morris
S Hemmings
S Owen
V Harvey
E Wallace
K Ferguson
D Bowater (Chair)
G Perham (substituting for A Dodwell)

Also in attendance:

M Saccoccio, Town Clerk
V Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic
Services
M Jahn, Committee Officer
Caldbeck (Place Programme Manager, Central
Bedfordshire Council)

Joining remotely

J Borthwick, Central Bedfordshire Council
S Hughes, Central Bedfordshire Council
K Owens, Central Bedfordshire Council
L White, Central Bedfordshire Council
T Humber, Community Forum group
Cllr T Stock, Central Bedfordshire Council
C Andrews, Bedfordshire Rural Communities
Charity

Members of the public:
Members of the press

5
1

146/LLP APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor F Kharawala, Gennaro
Borelli (LB First), Lorna Carver (CBC), and Councillor Dodwell substituted
by Councillor Perham.
147/LLP DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Leighton-Linslade Town Council and
Central Bedfordshire Council working in
partnership

Page 1

No declarations of interest were made and no disclosable pecuniary
interests were declared or dispensations were requested.
148/LLP QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 minutes per person; maximum 15
minutes)
A volunteer from Tiddenfoot Water Park Group spoke to raise his concerns
on what was the Town Council doing to raise the profile of Leighton Buzzard
culturally and environmentally. The Town was rich in history and with the
increasing population the provision of a welcome pack for new residents
should be considered to inform them of local history, accessible green
areas, groups and events in the area.
Members agreed and thanked the member of the public for his service as a
volunteer improving the local area for use by all now and in the future.
149/LLP MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
(a)
The Committee received the draft minutes of the Partnership
Committee meeting held on 10 February 2022.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Partnership Committee meeting
held on 10 February 2022 be approved as a correct record and were
signed accordingly.
(b)

Updates would be covered in the agenda.

150/LLP PLACE SHAPING AND DELIVERY
The Committee received an update from Sam Caldbeck, Place Programme
Manager on town centre issues and place shaping. The focus was on
rejuvenation of the High Street to future proof for the future after the impact
of covid.
Members were informed that Central Bedfordshire Council had been
allocated money from the Shared Prosperity Fund subject to the
development and approval of an investment plan which needed to be
submitted by July 2022. In the coming weeks meetings would be set up
with Central Bedfordshire Council, Leighton Linslade Town Council and
councillors to look at priorities required for the town and these would be put
forward for inclusion as part of a wider Central Bedfordshire plan.
Regarding the land south of the High Street, members were informed that a
consultant had been appointed by Central Bedfordshire Council to look at
the commercial aspects of this land with a site visit planned for May and
views from Leighton-Linslade Town Council would be welcomed. A
provisional date of 4 May had been agreed and the attendance of a LLTC
officer was welcomed.

Page682

Concerns were raised by members regarding the lack of communication
from Assets at Central Bedfordshire Council to officers and Councillors
regarding the recent sale of the land by the Post Office and whether this
would affect the overall development of the land south of the High Street.
Also it was hoped a more up to date plan could be drawn up as the last
masterplan was dated 2012.
RESOLVED to note this information.
151/LLP PARTNERSHIP PROJECT LIST
The Committee received CBC’s initial response to the Partnership Project
List from Sam Caldbeck, Place Programme Manager.
Sam Caldbeck suggested that it could be more helpful to have more detail
on the Partnership Project List showing whether a project was live, costings,
evidence and budgets available. CBC’s initial feedback to each point was
presented and CBC will provide more detailed responses at a future
meeting:
a)
To acknowledge that the Partnership Project List produced by
Leighton-Linslade Town Council had been endorsed by the
Partnership (Joint) Committee. Noted, although CBC was not involved in
the development of the List.
b)
To advise whether the Partnership Project List could be added
to the relevant information sources considered by the Planning
department when determining planning applications and developing
S106 planning obligations agreements in the parish. The List has been
circulated to the [CBC’s] Planning South Manager.
c)
To advise whether the Partnership Project List could be added
to the relevant information sources considered by S106 spending
officers when developing projects for delivery in the parish relating to
S106 agreements. The List had been sent to the S106 Monitoring team for
circulation to the [CBC] Spending Officers. They would need to consider if
/how the projects could be included into their strategies / plans. To be
included in a request for S106, projects would need to meet the CIL tests
and the projects need to be costed and evidenced.
d)
To advise whether there was a formal process that must be
followed at Central Bedfordshire Council for the Leighton-Linslade
Partnership Project List to be formally recognised and communicated
across the council and if so, what that process was and how it could
be implemented. We [CBC] are looking at how to take the list forward but
in the meantime we would need more detail about how real the projects are
– costed and evidenced.
e)
Whether the council would wish for any additional endorsed or
aspirational projects/objectives relevant to the parish to be included in
the Leighton-Linslade Partnership Project List. Noted

Page693

f)
To advise the Partnership Committee and/or Town Council if any
further actions were required from either body to achieve points b)-e)
above and if so, to clearly set out what those actions would be. The
Town Council would need to prioritise projects within the list and develop
costed plans
g)
To provide comments on each of the projects listed and whether
CBC supports them and would help to prioritise them. We [CBC] are
looking at how to take the list forward but in the meantime we would need
more detail about how real the projects are – costed and evidenced in order
to provide a response at a future meeting.
152/LLP LEIGHTON-LINSLADE LEISURE CENTRE
The Committee received a presentation regarding the proposed LeightonLinslade Leisure Centre on the eastern side of town. The new building
would replace the older Tiddenfoot Leisure Centre and provide three pools,
health and fitness, flexible studios, badminton court sports hall and outdoor
football pitches. Use of Tiddenfoot would remain until the new building had
been completed.
A public consultation on the proposal would start next week for 12 weeks
and would be followed by consideration by the Central Bedfordshire
Executive in the Autumn. If approved, the proposal would seek planning
permission and subject to approval, was planned to open in late summer
2025. Concerns were made regarding the increase in traffic going to the
east of the town, parking issues on site and the provision of adequate
sustainable transport links. It was confirmed a full traffic assessment would
be completed with the planning application. Members agreed bus routes
would be needed and dedicated cycling routes need to be joined up to
enable safe cycling to the site. A concern was raised about the existing
travel routes mentioned in planning documentation which were not open or
had existing problems limiting/preventing their use. Cllrs Wallace and
Harvey agreed to raise this concern with relevant CBC officers.
There was discussion on the adjacent sports pitches being provided by the
Stearn Land and Clipstone Park developments. The leisure centre proposal
would incorporate changing facilities for the pitches.
Thanks were given for the presentation and the Committee looked forward
to updates on the progress of the project at future meetings.
Officers were also asked to provide the update to a future Town Council
meeting as not all 21 members were present.
RESOLVED to note the information.
153/LLP CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL YOUTH SURVEY
As Angela Perry was unavailable the update on the Youth Survey would be
deferred to the next meeting.

Page704

154/LLP CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL UPDATE REPORT
The Committee received an update report from Central Bedfordshire
Council on matters relating to the parish, including information in respect of
social care, health and housing, crime figures, antisocial behaviour,
business rates, car parking, transport matters, community services, waste,
schools, public health and services to young people.
Concerns were raised regarding Schools for the Future timescales and
when parents would be able to state their thoughts on the change to a twotier system. Parents were nervous and unclear of future plans and it was
hoped more information could be provided as soon as it was available.
A question was also asked about the ETRO in the High Street and when the
Town Council would be likely to have dialogue with the Portfolio holder
following the meeting on the 1st February 2022, to discuss how to move this
forward and decide what needed to be implemented.
Two councillors raised concerns regarding the cleanliness of taxis and
alleyways in the town centre, as well as the condition of roads, particularly in
respect of potholes and given the drive to increase sustainable travel
options by encouraging cycling.
RESOLVED to note the information.
155/LLP STANDING ITEMS
(a)
CBC Councillor updates – Central Bedfordshire Council had
implemented ways in which the Ukrainian refugees could be helped with the
provision of detailed information on the website and provision of support for
refugees. Central Bedfordshire Council had also planted extra trees on
green spaces within the town.
(b)

LLTC updates - No updates made.

156/LLP COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN
The Committee received and considered the objectives and work plan for
the municipal year 2022-2023.
The Youth Survey update would be added to the June meeting agenda and
updates on the progression of the proposed Leisure Centre would be
included on the work plan.
RESOLVED to note the information.
157/LLP ITEMS FOR REQUESTING ATTENTION BY CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE
COUNCIL

Page715

None.
158/LLP BUDGET REPORT
The Committee received and considered the proposed budget for 20222023.
RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting closed at 9.50 pm.
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 21 APRIL 2022.

Chair

16 JUNE 2022

Page726

Agenda Item 10

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Leighton-Linslade Partnership (Joint) Committee

16 June 2022

Information Report on Town Council services & activities
Report of:

Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk
Sarah Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk

Purpose of this report:
To provide information to the Partnership
Committee on services & activities at Leighton-Linslade Town Council
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Partnership Committee is asked to:
1.

Note the report.

2.

Note the comments relevant to Central Bedfordshire Council, in particular
the highlighted areas for collaboration.

Background
1.

Leighton-Linslade Town Council comprises 21 elected Members and 40 employees,
with an annual expenditure budget in 2022-23 of £2,691,916.

2.

In addition to those powers and duties applicable to all parish councils, LeightonLinslade Town Council (LLTC) is eligible to exercise the General Power of
Competence (Localism Act 2011).

3.

The Town Council has four standing committees and operates in three main service
areas: Grounds & Environmental Services, Cultural & Economic Services and
Central & Democratic Services.

4.

LLTC publishes the vast majority of its meeting agendas, reports and minutes to its
website for transparency purposes.

Town Council projects, services & activities
5.

As requested, below is a summary of recent and current Town Council activity with
any comments relevant to Central Bedfordshire Council noted in the right hand
column. Specific areas on which the Town Council is currently requesting greater
collaboration are shown in bold and highlighted.

Page 7

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee
Area

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Current comment

Comment relevant to
CBC (if applicable)

Grounds & Environmental Services
Allotments
LLTC has seen a dramatic increase in
demand since March 2020. The current
waiting list is 291.
Only residents within the parish are added
to the waiting list.

Play areas

LLTC has invested some £300k in the
refurbishment of the play area in town
centre destination park Parson’s Close
Recreation Ground, to create a bespoke,
inclusive adventure playground which will
allow children of all abilities to play together,
including play at height.
LLTC is also refurbishing its play area in
Alwins Field, Linslade.

Parks & open
spaces

Cemeteries

The beach and Splash & Play park, which
are both free of charge, are now open for
the summer season. A temporary
refreshment offer replaces the previous
Café in the Park.
LLTC supports volunteers in three
community gardens with a fourth currently
being established in Parson’s Close.
LLTC has invested in increased
memorialisation options and is monitoring
demand for a potential second mausoleum.
The quantity of burials and ashes interments
remains constant. LLTC’s remaining burial
capacity is classified as “problematic”.

Page 8

Awaiting information on
the future of allotment
sites on the eastern
urban extension. The
requirement for
additional allotment land
is noted in the CBC
Parish Schedule
regarding Leisure.
This development
complements the
installation of a Changing
Places pod funded by
S106 monies.
An application has been
submitted to the CBC
Rural Match Fund to
resurface and widen the
diagonal
footpath/cycleway
across the park.

The longstanding
requirement for
additional burial land to
allow LLTC to continue
as a burial authority has
been noted by CBC in its
Parish Schedule and was
further acknowledged
during the Covid
pandemic crisis. A site
on the Stearn Land is
identified but is currently
outside the LLTC parish
boundary.

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee
Public Realm

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

LLTC is undertaking regular activity such as
graffiti removal. Summer planting and
hanging baskets are now installed.

Climate
Emergency

LLTC has passed a resolution to seek to
become net carbon neutral by 2030 and is
currently seeking a supplier to provide
baseline data. LLTC intends undertaking
carbon literacy training later in the year.
Greening
LLTC supports the work of the Friends of
Leighton-Linslade in Bloom and the South
Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth on local
community gardens, maintenance and
planting of amenity land and
wildflower/biodiversity projects.
Projects
LLTC has recently installed a re-creation of
the 1937 Coronation Shelter in Parson’s
Close and held a beacon lighting with
firework display for the Queen’s Platinum
Jubilee, which was very well attended.
Future projects include interpretation
signage in the parks, possible works to the
Henry Finch Memorial Fountain and
installation of drinking water fountains.
Cultural & Economic Services
Street Market At the end of May LLTC celebrated the 10th
anniversary of taking on the Market Charter
with a visit by representatives of the
National Association of British Market
Authorities. LLTC won the “best council run
market” award earlier in 2022. Additional
activities including visiting markets, Love
Your Local Market campaign and a special
Platinum Jubilee market.
Trails
LLTC continues to promote its Living History
trail and the Sands of Time trail. 2022 sees
the 10th anniversary of the Children’s Trail
and a birthday party will take place in
August, with an addition to the trail in
Linslade Recreation Ground.
Community
2022 sees a welcome return to the Big
Events &
Lunch, Linslade Canal Festival and
Promotions
Christmas Festival, which are enjoyed by
thousands of residents.
LLTC produces a bi-monthly parish
newsletter which is freely available in printed
form in various outlets, as well as online.

Page 9

Purchase of equipment
was funded through the
CBC public realm
improvement scheme.
LLTC welcomes
engagement with CBC
on its Sustainability
Plan.
LLTC and the Friends
would welcome
engagement with CBC
over the maintenance of
the Hockliffe Street town
centre roundabout.

These free community
events are possible with
CBC support to use the
town centre and
Tiddenfoot Waterside
Park.

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

55UP

LLTC is funding a 2 year project to provide
digital support to older people. Support can
be provided by telephone or in person.
Digital champion volunteers are currently
being recruited and trained. One venue for
support will be the “Chatty Café” which
operates on Tuesday mornings at the
Teenage Advice Centre, in conjunction with
Bassett Road Patient Participation Group.
LLTC has provided grant funding to a
number of groups and is considering funding
a part time “Community Agent” through
Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity.
TACTIC
The Teenage Advice & Information Centre
continues to provide mentoring, signposting
to specialist services, drop-in sessions,
holiday activities, a weekly additional needs
group, sessions in 5 of the 6 local
Middle/Upper schools and is supporting 11
young people in working towards an AQA
accreditation. The Centre saw 789 young
people in February-April 2022, a marked
increase back towards pre-pandemic
attendance numbers.
Business
LLTC has funded a revision of the local
support
shopping directory and contributed towards
the creation of an online business directory
as well as an online shopping portal. The
annual Business Network Event resumed in
April 2022 with over 100 local business
people attending. LLTC is currently funding
free town centre WiFi as well as GeoSense
town centre footfall counting data.
Central and Democratic Services
Civic
On 16 May 2022, Cllr Farzana Khwarawala
was re-elected Chairman (Town Mayor) for
2022-23, with Cllr Sheona Hemmings
elected Deputy.
Cllr Khwarawala will be raising funds for the
L-L Citizens Advice and L-L Helpers over
the next year.
Transport
LLTC has recently endorsed the revised
Buzzcycles Cycling Strategy and aims to
support progression of initiatives to promote
greater cycling in the town.

Page 10

LLTC would welcome
greater involvement in
the next review of
commissioned young
persons services by CBC
due to our established
local offer.

LLTC looks forward to
continued partnership
working with CBC
officers on highways
matters; queries are
regularly put forward

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

LLTC is also looking to support the creation
of a bus user group.

from the Planning &
Transport Committee.

LLTC is keen to engage with CBC as soon
as possible on the future of traffic in the
High Street.

LLTC welcomed the
statement made by Cllr I
Dalgarno on 1 February
2022 regarding
engagement with the
council on developing
future options for the
High Street and looks
forward to early progress
on this matter.

LLTC is keen to encourage the re-location of Meeting with taxi
the taxi rank from its current location outside licensing took place on
of Pizza Express.
8th March and awaiting
comment on the merits
or otherwise of a
preferred taxi rank
location.
LLTC has recently expressed concerns
regarding the A505 bypass.

LLTC is keen to
understand the progress
of the A505 safety
review.

LLTC is keen to progress the requested trial
of a timed crossing at the Bridge Street/Lake
Street junction.
Planning

In 2020-21 LLTC commissioned consultants
to advise on the likely costs and benefits of
developing a neighbourhood plan. Council
decided not to proceed with this on the
understanding that greater direction in terms
of place shaping and engagement with
parishes would come from the local
authority.
LLTC has formed a working party in respect
of land south of the High Street and is keen
to see a clear plan for this derelict site which
will enhance the town centre offer.
LLTC has sought engagement with S106
spending officers to better understand
current agreements and funds relating to the
parish and to seek greater engagement in
the process.

Page 11

LLTC is keen to
understand CBC’s
strategic plans in respect
of Place.
LLTC is keen to have
greater involvement in
the S106 process.
LLTC is keen to
understand CBC’s
intentions in respect of
the land south of the
High Street and how
both councils can work
together to ensure
appropriate development
on this site.

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee
Community
Safety

Governance
review

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

A Community Safety Plan is currently under
development with our CBC Community
Safety Officer.
LLTC is funding digital CCTV upgrade on its
land as part of the wider CBC digital CCTV
programme.
LLTC is aware of residents’ wish for a local
police hub and was pleased to note the
Police Crime Commissioner’s commitment
to this initative at its recent Council meeting
on 4 April 2022.
LLTC awaits the outcome of the second
round of CBC consultation with residents in
respect of the current boundary between
Leighton-Linslade and Eggington.

Health

Recent town growth has added to GP
pressures and waiting lists. LeightonLinslade is understood to be the largest
town in the country without a hospital.
Residents are keen to see increased GP
capacity as well as provision of additional
healthcare services locally. LLTC has a
Health Services Task & Finish group which
is keen for closer involvement and
engagement in the provision of local health
services and the proposal to develop an
Integrated Care Hub.

Grants

LLTC will be supporting local organisations
with almost £80k in grant funding in 202223, through service level agreements,
guaranteed grants (over 4 years) and
general grants (for small annual projects).
LLTC provides grants to the L-L Sports
Council and Arts Forum to distribute on its
behalf.
Recent small grants include support for
Girlguiding and Scouts, Reclaim Life,
Buzzcycles, W.I. and Friends of Tiddenfoot
Waterside Park.
LLTC is currently inviting nominations for the
3rd year of its Young People awards.

Awards

Page 12

LLTC is keen for greater
engagement with CBC
on this matter given the
ramifications for future
management of public
land and facilities on the
eastern developments.
LLTC is aware this is one
of the top issues for
residents, as provision of
local health services is not
keeping pace with
population growth.
LLTC is keen for greater
engagement with the
CBC Health and
Wellbeing Board on this
matter and to see
demonstrable progress
towards the
improvement of local
healthcare provision.
LLTC supports Citizens
Advice with £23k+ in grant
funding. LLTC also
supports the LeightonLinslade Music Centre, run
by CBC Inspiring Music,
with over £9k per annum.
Other recipients relevant to
CBC include Buzzer Bus
(Dial A Ride) and the
Meadow Way Community
Centre.

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee

Other

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

In May, LLTC presented two Community
Volunteer Awards to two local residents with
5+ years of volunteering in the community.
LLTC is currently undertaking a software
review including meetings management
software.
LLTC committed to an equalities statement
in 2021 and commissioned an accessibility
audit of its buildings. A programme of
actions to enhance accessibility is under
development.
The White House re-opened to the public
earlier this year. We continue to receive
walk-in enquiries from residents on CBC
matters and approximately one-third of
telephone calls are on CBC-related matters.

LLTC would be keen to
talk to CBC officers
about its Convene
software for meetings
management.

LLTC is keen to
understand whether CBC
customer service
provision will resume at
the LB Library. We deal
with in-person enquiries
from residents who may
not be able or willing to
access services online and
wish to discuss in person.
At present there is
nowhere we can refer such
enquiries.

6. The above table provides a high level overview but the Town Council continues to
engage with Central Bedfordshire Council councillors and officers on a wide range of
matters affecting local residents.
7. The Town Council would very much welcome more pro-active information and
engagement with the local authority on both strategic matters and proposed/planned
projects, services and activities which will affect residents within our parish.
End.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Town Clerk: Mark Saccoccio, 01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Leighton Linslade
Partnership Committee

LEIGHTON LINSLADE PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
WORK PLAN 2022-2023 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2019-2024)
REFERENCE

DESCRIPTION

Purpose
1. To influence decisions and help shape initiatives and their delivery for the benefit of the whole town taking
into account the needs of the town, customers, employees, residents, visitors, traders, property owners and
developers.

Page 15

2. To develop and encourage public participation and engagement and take into consideration the resident
voice in the work of the Committee
Objectives

1. Help improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural vitality of the town
2. Ensure a partnership and collaborative approach to achieve the delivery of town regeneration, including
influencing Section 106 funding received for town improvements and community facilities.

4. The Committee will make decisions on any joint funding allocated to it.
5. Influence and help shape strategies / plans that impact on the future viability of the town.
6. Provide a forum for briefing Members of the Joint Committee on all key issues affecting the town, at the
discretion of the Chairman and Vice Chairman.

1

Agenda Item 11

3. Opportunities to delegate funding decisions to the Committees should be explored, such as Section 106
received to spend on community facilities.

7. Make recommendations on strategically significant projects to the relevant Council’s decision-making
committees, including Committees of the Town Council.
8. Develop and maintain joint branding of communication, agendas and minutes.
9. To enable communities to discuss services and influence decisions at the local level as to how these services
are delivered.
10. To provide a forum for two-way communication about public service delivery and the implementation and
effectiveness of policies affecting the town.
11. Promote resilience by encouraging communities to do more for themselves and champion local solutions.

Page 16

12. Consider the ways in which proposals and initiatives can help to advance equality of opportunity, eliminate
discrimination and foster good relations.

Meeting Date
21 April

Regular Updates
Co-opted Members update
Community Forum update
MTRF update
Enabling Delivery in L-L
(Land South of the High
Street)

Work Plan 2022-2023
 CBC Update
 Place Shaping and Delivery
 Youth Survey - verbal
 New Leisure Centre
 Partnership Project List – initial CBC response

Taxis
CBC & LLTC Cllr updates
16 June

Co-opted Members update
Community Forum update
MTRF update
Enabling Delivery in L-L
(Land South of the High
Street)





Place Shaping and Delivery
Partnership Project List
Public Realm

Taxis
CBC & LLTC Cllr updates

2

1 September

Co-opted Members update
Community Forum update
MTRF update
Enabling Delivery in L-L
(Land South of the High
Street)



Youth survey



CBC Update



CBC Update

Taxis
CBC & LLTC Cllr updates
8 December

Co-opted Members update
Community Forum update
MTRF update
Enabling Delivery in L-L
(Land South of the High
Street)

Taxis
CBC & LLTC Cllr updates

Page 17

9 February

Co-opted Members update
Community Forum update
MTRF update
Enabling Delivery in L-L
(Land South of the High
Street)

Taxis
CBC & LLTC Cllr updates
6 April

Co-opted Members update
Community Forum update
MTRF update
Enabling Delivery in L-L
(Land South of the High
Street)

Taxis
CBC & LLTC Cllr updates

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18

Agenda Item 13
LEISURE FACILITIES IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE
The Issue
Central Bedfordshire Council are consulting until 22 July on their proposal to invest £25 million
in a new leisure facility on land to the east of Leighton-Linslade (albeit outside the current town
boundary). It is stated that, once the proposed leisure centre is complete and ready for use, the
existing Tiddenfoot Leisure Centre in Linslade to the west of the town centre would be closed.
The new Leisure Centre is to be welcomed and will be a very positive addition to the facilities
available to the town and surrounding area. However, there remains the question of the future of
the Tiddenfoot site, including the detrimental impacts of its potential closure for many people and,
should it be closed, the alternative uses for the site. These are extremely significant matters which
require a concurrent examination.
Motion
That the following recommendations be conveyed to Central Bedfordshire Council on behalf of
the Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee:






That serious consideration be given (in the light of the points made below) following the
consultation period, to the case for the continuation of Tiddenfoot as a leisure facility with
such management and organisational changes as may be necessary for this to be feasible
That, in the event that such continuation does not prove practical, serious consideration be
given to the continuation (and improvement) of such facilities which may be able to
continue in use for the community whether through transfer to third parties or agreement
with Cedars Upper School to minimise the disbenefits to the local and surrounding
community
That, in the event of a more general closure of Tiddenfoot as a Leisure Centre, a firm
commitment be given to its continuation as a community hub with serious and urgent
consideration being given to the functions it might perform under this heading, in
consultation with the community.

The Significance and Community Role of Tiddenfoot
Central Bedfordshire Council’s Leisure Facilities and Action Plan acknowledges that as well as
the facilities and activities they provide, leisure centres have a wider role in creating and sustaining
a vibrant and viable community, promoting community cohesion by offering social space for
individuals and groups to interact and to bring people together. While, clearly, the new centre will
be far better located for residents in the new developments to the east of Leighton-Linslade,
Tiddenfoot has identified locational advantages which are not shared by the proposed situation of
the new centre. In addition, it is one of few service activities still possessed in the Linslade area,

Page 19

which has seen a progressive migration of facilities away from this former separate urban district
and community to the Leighton Buzzard Town Centre and east, since Linslade’s incorporation in
Leighton-Linslade in the mid-1960s.
Tiddenfoot’s Location
Again, as noted in Central Bedfordshire Council’s Leisure Facilities and Action Plan, it is
important that sports and leisure facilities deliver “conveniently co-located facilities for residents”,
and that accessibility to sports’ facilities is improved, in order to encourage greater participation
by all sectors of the community.
The Sport England report on Central Bedfordshire Swimming Pools noted that “The Tiddenfoot
Leisure Centre is the better location for swimming demand in the Leighton Buzzard area”. This
remained the case in 2028. Whilst the proposed new pool would meet demand, it concluded that
“on all counts, the Tiddenfoot Leisure Centre Pool is a better location, to meet the demand in the
Leighton Buzzard quadrant. The option to modernise the Tiddenfoot Leisure Centre is a better
option, than replacement of it, with provision of a new pool site at Leighton/Linslade”. This
finding appears to arise from the fact that the highest demand for swimming in the area is located
south and west of the proposed new site.
The recommendation in the Indoor Leisure Facilities Strategy and Action Plan that, if the
Tiddenfoot Leisure Swimming Pool is not to be retained, then consideration should be given to its
transfer as a community asset to Cedars School or a consortium of local swimming clubs, including
for local school use, would appear sensible if that scenario is followed
Similarly, Sports England found that Tiddenfoot was the better location for a Sports Hall facility
both in 2018 and 2028 which emphasises the need for continuity of the present provision, given
the absence of this element at the proposed new centre. Sports England concluded that “It would
be preferable to retain the Tiddenfoot sports hall site and if it is feasible, consider further
improvements to it”. Of course, this would depend on continued co-existence with the use of the
hall by Cedars School. Here, there would need to be clarification if the course advocated in Central
Bedfordshire Council’s Leisure Facilities and Action Plan is followed, where it was recommended
that the Tiddenfoot Leisure Centre sports’ hall be retained for curriculum use and its transfer
considered to the Upper School.
It is also important to note that the presumed relative ease of access to the proposed new facility
on the east of the town, for those within the Tiddenfoot catchment area to the west in particular, is
arguably over-optimistic. Except for those who live extremely close to a leisure facility, car
journeys are currently the overwhelming means of access. To reach the new leisure centre, those
to the west have the unenviable choice of access (a) via the A4146/515 by-pass and Eastern Relief
Road. The bypass is frequently congested around peak times and this is often not the easiest of
routes as well as being quite a lengthy journey, (b) through the centre of Leighton-Linslade which
is easily the most direct route but very frequently heavily congested and extremely slow therefore,

Page 20

or (c) a northern circuit via Old Linslade, Heath Road and eg Shenley Hill Road which would
introduce additional traffic on local roads as well as being a lengthy journey. There are also
currently questions over the delivery of future cycling and bus service facilities to and from the
eastern extension to the town. There would be sustainability advantages, therefore, in maintaining
facilities at Tiddenfoot.
Concluding Remarks
While it is noted in the Central Bedfordshire Executive Report of 7 December 2021, that the
“Tiddenfoot centre is 40+ years old and is no longer fit for purpose”, the reason for this – if it is
indeed the case – might well be questioned when many older facilities are in good use throughout
the country.
It is accepted that the work so far undertaken on the new leisure centre suggested that only one
centre is currently required for the near-term future in Leighton-Linslade and that retention of
Tiddenfoot could negatively impact the viability and affordability of both facilities. Nevertheless,
it is clear that the closure of Tiddenfoot would disadvantage many people and its location has many
positives. It would, therefore, be an option, before any final decision is taken and as previously
foreseen in the Indoor Leisure Facilities Strategy and Action Plan – Report on Findings, to
undertake a new detailed study on options for retaining the Tiddenfoot Centre with emphasis on
any necessary changes to its management and operation to improve viability, especially in the light
of responses to the Consultation. Under the current proposals there will also still remain several
gaps in the leisure facilities provision in the Leighton-Linslade area such as indoor tennis, indoor
bowls, boxing, and adequate dance performance space, though it is accepted that not everything
for everyone can be catered for.
It is very clear that Tiddenfoot is a valued community asset. But, should any partial or total closure
be decided upon in due course, then the question arises of the future use of part or the whole of the
site. There would be the greatest local resistance and opposition to the loss of a community facility,
especially if it were to be sold for example for housing development. Consequently, consideration
should then be given to other community uses of the space. At one end of the spectrum this could
include civic (town council, Central Bedfordshire) offices, a police hub, or a health hub, though
location and suitability would here be critical questions to answer. Apart from such uses, other
community activity could, however, be considered such as meeting space for clubs and societies,
social or day care related activity, soft play facilities, business start-up offices....and many more.
The essential feature would be to retain Tiddenfoot as a community hub.
16 May 2022

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

